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Recently Discovered Day-Books, Ledgers and
‘Correspondence of a Firm Operating Immediate-

1t Bring Back the Past

A king and a queen were om the
throne, in France, and Amstria
was at war with Holland, Kiag
George lhe Third was making bold
attempls to protect the commerce

Hht, Tevive ‘thec we by After the ‘Revolutionary War and Before the he'is o ooa tieat “Tairicos
rosperous, im it town.on the Stales, patriols were nursing
Lon den thelr wounds and scars, asd

secrets
Z'::Mi':ng the mﬂrﬁ‘hnhz of ﬂ’:'
and ni?d e . o s

\ agricul-
tural and financial, vu—tom

Enrup. iollowin‘ Amuic-'s war
r . indej . h;lﬁwd‘
'I'hn tlhts d ber- o!
the first real”estate sr mallton n
land, lh- n.ndtl;tlr for a National
the

State hl;h:ny from - wunluum

Ratification of the Constitution Reveal Past Glory
of Dumfries, Va., as Former Thriving Trading
Center—Most Famous Families in Virginia Linked
With Vlllage Now Crumbllng to Decay—*Old
Store” One of Country’s Oldest Structures.

By BESSIE WILMARTH GAHN

Photos by the Anthor.

planting new crops ol tobacco, tha
oné common currency in America,
when Lhe Tirst of the lettors to
Hule, Reld & Co. were dellvered
In Dumfries, Va.
" e oe '

HE Village of Dumilries Is in a

protected valley on the morth
side of Quantico Creek, mot far
{from the Potomac River, Its pres-
ent handful of houses, most, of
them frame, have sprung up along
tha sides of the highway. Heavy
trucks, public buses, touring cars,
pasising between Washington and
Richmond, whiz through the vil-
lage at a dangerous speed, and so
quickly are they beyond and over
the next hlll that Dumfries is

; to_Rich passed almost as soon as It Is
" fries is none than the huld- reached. Thus, no one observes
- _ing used 140 m s a mer- the crumbled foundations thut
. cantile hn:r y t! : mark each side of the road. :
ons firm h In the side yard of the Old
fact, the vi 3 ll.'.,b\n Store, [or Instance, where myrtle
mmy ‘mn na'havl« vinea thickly carpet a space be-

as" “the Old sum'! and
p:mnt inb-hﬂu

the ' old

tween Lhe lilacs, the county court-
house once stood, and GCeorge

! count; mt wm.a.ﬂn-m that it is Washinglon- was not yet In lhe
bly the "qldut house in Vir- prime of life when he tirst attend-
ginia.’ ed court in this-place. Mr. Foole

There is a lkhf yard, nearly hid-
den by ull, lnciunt lllu:l, and a

deep, shady down the side
of—the ho 'mlun Tubbs, .

will tell you that the courthouse
foundations -were there until «
short while ago, when he dug up

. the space for his garden, ahd that
a ;untle, hl.u_-—qud-\ Irldmv oi-_ the narrow dirt road juu-lnnm:
82 years, raises “in various . the lilac hedge was once the “oid

© yea: she has li
houu with her brother, Ilr Fobh
. who is_but three year
than llm In” thn frmt ut the

rolling road thnl led vlean over I-a
the mountains.”

And the crumbled foundalipox
just beyond the Old Store, along
the highway! Armed with fu-

I:aiﬁlris..d :&Eht u;hnﬁt:nmmt;: f?rmll’lnumluppllud lnulln collce-
tion of old slore books and let-
:oh:d.w“' there is a shoemaking ters of Hule, Reld & Co., and In-

with old, worn counters,
-locked douu, stalwart
buml that ll:plreatly once serve
ed as ut. o um -miil'u:t ship.

be arrived in Dumfries, ami noth-
i':.' :nd'fo “l ulf' E mtlau
an n fact, so y and
Boei thesagh the yesrs tha ‘°“"
rou; years tha
linger undis-
turbg in a nouk and cranny.

Across the highway and direct-
{ opposite the old store is an-
other weather-worn building. Thrd
fa now closed and sadly marked
"“For Sale.” In Its prosperous
days, this wids the “Farmers -Ho-
tel.” It was. q\ned and managed
untll recently by -Mr. George Rat-
cliffe, with the aid of his daugh=~
ter, Mrs. S Last year
(1028), Mr. Ratecliffe died, after
living 84 years in Dumfries. e
was buried in the cemetery of the
old Episcopal Church, on the hiil

+ just back.pf the village,

Many years ago, when Mr.
Foote arrived in Dumfries and
.opened his ahpmlinx business
“in the (ront room of the old store,
Mr. Ratcliffe, just across the road,
opened u general store to w’hleh
ha attached a bar, or “tap room,"”
in the front room of his Farmera'

The “Old-Store’” at .D.-n-h-l'l. Va.

“tramps, thleves, and other bad
characters [rom Lhe river."” There
was drinking, carousing and rob-
bery, aud woe tp the unfortihate
traveler whose journey carried
him’ along -the highway through
Dumfries!

The old stage coach with its
bags of -mall, whlch once made
trips through the’village Lo carry
all news between the North and
the South, had given way In 1816
to m line of steamboats which
plied from Washington and Alex-

andria ‘to Aquia, where connec-

tions were made with Fredericks-

(A
mond, Frederick:
tomac Rallroad, which ran nll the
way to Richmon:

Mr, Ratcliffe recalled the days
when furnace-heating systems
were first used in the houses of

Al

andria and Washington; and
he spoke of his own efforts to fm~

old rags ap there, and we can
Just take anll we want for (he
earpel.’

“Now, the wl.y to the garret, In
those. days, was up a ladder that
reached through a square Lrap
dodr in the celling. the-only open-
ing to the place, Bo, once In Lhn
garret, Lthe old ladies Brmly pl-ud
their candlestick and car
looked about.
Mammy Gray's shoe knocked o
some object. of metal. By Lhs
light of her candle, she discovered
a rust-covered, very old lanlern.

The exact age of this howse is wnknmown, bui indications
re that its construction antedates I749.

Stooping to plck it up, her hand
touched and moved the lid of a
dusty, secrel chest. She pushed
HYack th§ lid and Lo her amaze-
ment found that the chest was
filled wilh old, wora ledgers and
packages of iltl-'rl elaborately
coverad wilh quill-pen scrolls and
richly yellowed wilh age.

“Mammy GCray carefully lfted
out some of the letters, and lo-
gether with Mrs, Brawner, who
knew how lo read, found lhat
they were the long hidden papers
of an old tobacco firm, Messrs.
Hule, Reld & Co., merchants, In
Dumfries, Va. The earll Ihe
papers were dated In 1784: The
rest bore dales extending Lo 1785
or 17196,

“Under tha dust and muld,
there appeared in original hand-
writing the signatures of members
of such families as Lhe Carters,
Masons. Washingtons, Walkers,

apired by George Ratcliffe’'s
stories. it is fascinaung to look
over the remainder ‘of Dumfries
and atlempt to surmise What tha
rulns may have meant, 160 yours
or 80 ago.

Perbaps we are mow-.standing
where the old opera house stood,
where Cen. Ingtén viewed
the production, in 177], of "The
Recruiting Officer.” after dutl-
fully atlending sessions at (Dum-
fries’) rourt. d
Jockey Club
Richard Blac
Blackburn wus one of the town's
first trustecs, in 1749, und his
home was ul old Hippon Lodge,
nearby,

Somewhere In the town ithere
was a poor bouse, and there was

whose president
an Col. Thoma
near Dumfries. This
of the extensive Les ¥
was & son of Richard Henry Lee
and a grasdson of old Thomas
Lee, of Stratford. Records stule
that he married Lwice; first, to
Mlildred Washington, daughter of
John Augustine Washington, and
secondly 1o Eliza Ashion Brent,
The Brents, yoff remember,
lived near Aquia, In Stafford
County and just across the line

Hotel. By virtue of his long and e ;
prove his Farmers' Hotel by dig: . Rlunds, from Prince Willlam, From old
continued residence, Mr. Ralciiffe ging under it a space deep enough Ly et :H;uu:- ”p, Richland, the home of Robert
bad become “historiap™ I Dum- . ol : Bulltite, _Birav, Brents, “opeh B d his wif
fries, for a ur:_-c:l. 0 s .m“l:.n:i“ v Hooe Alexanders, Chapmans, rliln(. ar., am . u; i.' AI; %nr—
1822, whan Georgs Rat- he sald, h discovered an old dun- Tylers and so on. - Muny of lhe roll, came the lllustrious Robert

In
cliffe’s father was yet a Young
man, the county court was re-
moved (rom-Dumfries to Breals-
. Yille. But ‘long after court as-
“ semblfes had-ceased in Dumfrias,
the “courthouse cormér” -of the

illage was kept alive. There
ware waeKly gatherings at the Old
Stere and the Farmers' Hotel for
local gossip and news, and mem-
ories of old times in Dumfries
were renewed, now and then. with

the ald of Mr. George Ratcliffa. -

This hlstorian would tell you,
In whispers, perhaps, that at one
time, when he was a boy. Dum-
fries ‘was considerad a “‘very good
place to keep away from!™ Tts
once busy  streets. crowded
wharves, fine stores, were gone:
its socipl Iife had disappeared, and
most of the old ploneer families
had died, or moved elsewhere
even before the Clvil War.
this exodus, the fine old homes
fell into a dilapidated condition,
and the place became a refuge for

gean, and In It there was seated
a perfect, human skeleton!

But the historian’s great "mys-
tery story" was ln regard to the
Old Store across the road. “I'd
give anything to know,” he would
begin, “about some old papers
that were once stored im that old
place across the road. They
would be valuable, If we had them
today."

"“Tha papers were found many
years ago, long before Mrs. Tubbs
and Mr. Foole came to live In
Dumfries; even -before the Civfl
War.
Gray kept house fn the . back
-rooms of the Old Store, while her
husband attended to the shop.

.Mammy's particular friend was
old Mrs. Brawner, who lived just
a plece up, the road. Together
they were making a fine rag cdr-
pet, ona day, when all of their
material un out. Let's go up Inte
the garret,’ suggested )llw-.r
Gray. ‘I illolr there’s . ﬂl.no ol

At that time, Old Mammy "

ound in

the garret of the “Old Sgore™

at the same time the old lei<
ters were discovered.

Quaint old lantern

lotters were [rom the firm of
Smith, Hule, Alexander & Co.,

Fort Glasgow, Scotland. Others”
were [rom commerclal agents in
London, Amsterdam. Rotterdam.
and from Havre de Grace, Frunce;
or from Philadelphla, Bladz2ns-
burg, Fredericksburg, AlexanJtria,
or George Town, Montgomery Co.

“Naturally, the old ladies were
oxciled. bul Lhey were also very
discreet, Carefully they placed
the. papers back ln the chest, took
up the rags for thelr carpet, hlaw
out the candie, and canticusly de-
scended the ladder.- They told no
one about the letters. for a while:
but old Mrs. Brawner later sent
out a letter and no one knew what
it was about.”

Thus the letters were discov-
eréd, and with them came to light
loag-hldden secrets of the very
bagianing of our foreign and do-
meslic commerce In the days be-
fore the ratification of the Con-
stitation.
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Brent, jr.. firet Mayor of Wash-
logton Cily. and Mr. D, C. Breat,
Robert’s brother. mamed for his
wealthy grandfuther. Daniel Car-
roll, of Duddington, Md.

One of ihe leiters in the col-
lection of Hule, Mied & Co. is
written in the clear. forceful writ-
ing of one Thomas Lee, sr., who
states that he Is writing at the
request of Mr. . C, Brent, who
wishes him to order certaln artl-
cles of white silk and white satin
for Miss Polly Brent, "by whom
they will be shortly wanted.”
Surely Lhe dally newspaper of
Dumfries would publish an ae-
wount of the affair for which Misa
Polly Brent wanled them, for
whenever she came with her
triends in their charlots and
“chairs” (o uttend public balls aod
exclusive tea drinkings, the Dum-
fries newspaper reported [t

Near ths upper end of Lhe vii-
luge today, there ia a well pre-
served bullding of red brick, cor-



T he basement of the Judge Tebbs House at Dumfries, built
inm X749, presenis a succession of surprises. [Note the secret
pocket in the side of the stone fireplace.

niced with slabs of white stone.
Like other white-stone (rimmings
on bulldings in the vicinity, this
stone most probably came from
the old quarries of the Brenls' at
Aquia, the quarries which were
Jeased by the United States Gov-
ernment in later days to provide
slone for the Capitol a* Washing-
ton, This bailding in Dumiries
s old Love's Tavern, where Wash-
ington stopped to rest on his trips
southward from Mount Vernon,
and where Lafayelte stayed over-
night when he journeyed north-
ward.

Not far from the iavern and
about 200 feet west of high-
way, there is a durk, pine forest
on the hillside. Tt l. a fitting
background for the once-preten-
tious house there before it, yet
the house is hidden [rom its base
1o jts second story by tall, rank
weeds snd dense, bushy under-
growth. Its artistic doorway of
white stene, once the thresheld
of aristocratic Virginia and dis-
tingulshed foreign visitors, now i
completely lost in mazes-of trum-
pet, wild grape and other reckless
vines grown old. The structure
of the house is very similar te that
of Love's Tavern, lo Gunsten Hall,
George Muson's home, and to old
Publck  Church, George Mason's
church, both places on Lhe way Lo
Dumfries from Alexandria. All
of these buildings are of similar
design—red brick corniced with
white stone from Aqnl.'a ok

The present owner of this house
on t}nvlull is Mr. Gwr‘.ﬁl{in:,

who keeps a stere in

He calls it “the y Tebl
ouse.” It was built in the early
days of the town (I'Ilﬂ by Jndqn
Foushee Tebbs, one of the
incerporators. 'ﬂbhl

Mrs.
was the last of that fuully to m
it, For many years "
occupied by the l\md.ly hnnﬂr.
and after the Civil War it was
used as a public school.

At the other end of Dumfries,
‘the highway passes over a wooden
brld and here is romance in-

Quantico Creek, now vir-

tullly dry, was ence a deep, rush-
fng course of water up which ves-
f- were sailed heavily laden
with merchandise from far across

Co. has established proofl that at
ene time, at the mouth of the
creek, on otomac River,
‘white-sailed, ocean-going vessels
onee drifted with loads of tobaceo,
wheat, and lumber, bound for the
West Indies, Scotland, London,
Holland, France, and other far-
away places. And these uml lhlpﬂ
came back, Jby-and-by, laden with
wines, ull. rum, dry g &, and
other manufactured articles from
Europe, eagerly awaited cargoes
that were bronght up old Quan-
depuned at the

custom lbou-e and on the busy
wharves for Scotch merchants
- and ' traders at Dumfries. Ruins
of the old custom house are still
in view along the side of the
creek.

And the warehovses! There
were rows of them, the first huv-
ing been erected, by order of
Great. . Britain, in 1710. These
warehouses remained many years
after busy Dumfrice was dead.
There seems to be no record 1o es-
tablish the fact that they were
burned in the mreat fire which
swept throurh the town about the
time of the War of 18'2, vet old
rexidents declare that it is true,

The nlrl account books of Huie,
Reid & Co. make frequent men-
tion of the ships which they used,
and which they very often char-
tered to others. The list follows:

Adventure, Agness, Ann (ship),
Betsey (brig)., Boyd, Christinna,
Mary, Hnll, (ship), Polly, Will-
lam (sloop).

s an entry in one of the - duv
hooks for 1787. the “'Brig Bel
ix charged with the following:

ol prwres * s cr et

“Craltage of goods from Betsey
up the creek; 2 toms -of iron
plates, from Bladensburg; 2 hhds.
sugar, up Lhe creek; Lomndon
goods, up the creek,

“Craftage of goods down the
creek; § caskas wine, Lo Alexan-
dria; 16 hogsheads tobaceo, down
the ek [rom the wharf; 18
hogs! tabacco, Lo the creek
mouth; 26 hogsheads Lobacco,
down the creék; 36 hogsheads to-
baeco, to the mouth of thé creek.”

There ls an elaborate bill, dated
1784, tor this craftage of geods,
It is In the artistic handwriting
of Thomas Chapman, who signs It
with style, seroll and fAourish. An
Izteresting histery of this youmg
reolleman may be gleaned frem
tze letters of Hule, Reid & Co.

Withia the two years lollowing
his craftage of goods ‘‘up and
down the creek,” he becomes a
member of the prosperous firm at
Dumfries and one of the lown's
first and foremost citizems. There
are numbers of noles written to
“Mr. Thomas Chapman™ that
prove his pepularity with the

daughters of prominent planters.
Genealogists state that he mar-
ried Miss Susanpa Ewell, daugh-
ter of Maj. Berirand Ewell, of
Buck Hall, pearby, one of the
founders of Dumfries and a
cousin of the Washingtons. One
of the grandsons of Thomas Chap-
man evidently Inherited his artis-
tlc tastes; he not only conquered
the art of making scrolls with a
pen, but ‘he tried his Juck with a
paintbrush, and his fame spread
To the pres-
the Rotunda
of the Capitol at Washington, D.
C., to look with admiration at the
large painting entitled “The Bap-
tism of Pocahontas,” by Thomas
Gadsby Chapman, whose mother
was & daughter of John Gadsby
of “*hotel lame,"” and whose father
wus a son of Thomas Chapman!

Another daughter of Maj. Ber-
trand Ewell (Frances) married
the Rev. Mason Locke Weems,
tamed for his history of Washing-
ton and hlg love for cherry iree
anecdotes. Another interesting
connecifon of the Ewell family
was that of the daughter of Col.
Jesse Ewell, Berirand's brother,
wh~ married Dr. Cralk, Washing-
ton's [Iriend and physician, and
lived at Bel Alr, not far from
Dutnfries,

JAfter Thomas Chapman entered
the firm of Huie, Reid & Co., his
business on the creek seems to
have been continued by ome Will-
lam Tebbsa, for on June 9, 1787,
the following entry was made in
one of the ledgers:

“Pald for craftage of London
goods, up the creek, 9 shillags.

“Pald Wm. Tebbs in full of nis
eraflage, 2 pounds.”

Still  another memorandum:
“Merchandise to Willlam Hunter,
Alexandria, - - - - 1 hhd. Jamalea
Rum, 26 pounds, 1 shilling, &
penca.”

And lnmor' “James Reid to
Georgelown Store - = - Humes
History of Emgland.”

Letters found with these old
store books Indicate that branches
of the firm were located at
Georgetown and Blademsburg,
Md., and scross Occoquan
nearby, in old Colchester, another
town of the days of lomg age.
There is an entry in the day-
book for 1787, as fellews:

Old mill on Quantico Creeck, at Dumfries, l’-., _o-a- turned
&y flow of the .trram. since silted

‘“Balance due Boor:c' Town
Stere for Dealings at Colchiester,
12 Pounds, § Shillings.™

- - - -

IN the very early days of Dum-

fries, long before Messrs. Hule
Reld & Co. came over from Bouny
Scotland, the land about Dumfries

bhad been granted to John Graham -

(1741), who came over from
Perthshire, married OChristian
Brown, of Port Tobacco, Md., and
pettled on his mewly -acquired
property. In two years, his wife
died, and John Graham married
the daughter of Catesby Oocll
and became county

came a series of merchant -Mpl
from Secotland, bringing thrifty
merchants from the old country
who had “salC on their tongue,
and brawn in thelr arms, and
clear-sighted business hoads."
Fortunes were made by linking
the commerce of Europe with the
trade of inland Virginia, and
Dumfries became the mart of the
Polomac.

“But, woe to the business from
across the seas w tha Revelu-
tion Samed up in Virginla! For-
eign merchants and foreign ves-
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vels were prohibited from the Po-
tomae until the -prllg of 1784;
and as soon as the Letlllltur-

relgners,

prosperous firm In Port muamu
Scotiand (Smith, Hule, Alexander
& Co.), sent over a shipload of
manufactured . wares, together
with a couple - ol seotehmln and

started & branch house in Dum-
fries under the name “Hule, Reld
& Co., Merchants, {n Dumfries.™
(These facts.are proved -by state-
ments ll\ lettars from Holland and
France ad

the Potomac (named by the In-
dians “Patowmek,” " “River of
Traders™”) lived up to Its name.
By August 7, 1789, the following
large mercantile ‘houses were
there located:

James Muschett.

Hugh Ferguson & Co.

James James.

Hufe, Resd & Co.

Richard Scott.

Lithgow & Lawson.

Henderson, Ferguson & Gibson,

Hector Alexander,

Thoothy Brundige,

Bernard Gallagher,

James and George llurm &
Co,

Along the road sowth ot Dam-
fries which turns westward ‘from
the bridge and follows -Quantico
Creek, there is an old. cobble
stone path that branches off and
leads down & few yards lo the .

ereek. In former days, this was
the ford to the mill, which -atill
looms up on the cpudu sidesf
the stream. The mill Is an ener- -
mous, gray-stone affalr, its hupe,
wooden wheel idly Tesling on-the
dry rocks and sand at its feet. its
doorways and windows Lightly
‘boarded, over, .and ils roof gayly
+dotted with patches of bright
.green mose, In the woods beside
it, = stone-lined causeway, long in
se, connects with a dam bullt
across the creek revidently whesn
the fatal “siiting-up" process -be-
gan to fill the stream and to siow
up the big wheel. This was years
alter commerce up the creek from
the Potomac had been ruined
through similar cause. The scene
at the old mill today reminds ene
of a onece-alert, once-powerful
monster, now m:ncd forever to
sleep.

And the fate of the mill was
the fale of the town. Alter all
its eommerclal and socinl impor-
tance, both in foreign lands and
with neighboring towms &f Vir-
ginia and of Maryland, Dumiries
iteelf was doomed. Even before
‘the Revolulionary Wu the bed
of Quantico Creek had begun to
fill up with silt, and the procees
continued throughout the period
of the Revolutlon, when no
thought could be given to domes-
tie affairs by patriotic American
citizens, Howaver, after the war;
when shipping and trade were re-
sumed In earnest and the waler-
way to Dumfries become obstruct-
ed, the most prominenl townsmen
met in public sesslonr and de-
cided, first, to clear the creek.
That failing, they met again, in
1795, and organized the “Quan-
tice Company,” whose duly it be-
came lo raise money by loiterfes
to build a grand canal, with locks
through which merchant vessels
might once more come and go.
This brought a revival of (rade,
until the canal Itselfl began Lo silt
up. By this time, most of the
oldest citisens were gone. and
Alexandria, with her deep-waler
harbor, her fine roads lo and over
the mountains, and her proximity
te the new Federal Cily (Wash-

Continued on Page 1¥, Column &
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Continued from Page 2.

ington), gradually absorbed the
trude that once belonged to Dum-
Iries.

Northeastiof Dumfiries, al Free-
stone Point, between Neabsco
(Ureek and Powell Creek, leesyl-
vania looks down on Lhe Potomac.
This was the home of the Lee
family for six generations. Here
[Henry Lee took his DUbride, the
beautiful Lucy Grymes, to live,
and here their illustrious sons

were born and raised.

One of the sons was “Light

Horse Harry,” father of Gen. Rob-
ert I<. l.ee. Another son was the
famed Charles Lee, who at the
time of the Old Store in Dumfiries
was listed in the Iledgers as
“(‘harles Lee, Naval Officer,” and
who later (1796) became Wash-
ington's Attorney Ceneral; Rich-
ard Bland Lee, prominent in lo-
caling the Capital at Washington,
and other sons who figured in
making the history of the United
States of America.
. Among the ruins at Leesylvania
Lthere are traces of an old garden,
and two gravestones here mark
the last resting place of the mas-
ter and mistress of this once hand-
some estate, where a life's happl-
ness had surrounded them.

Somcwhere mear Dumfries,
there was an old estate which Is
valled, in the letters and in old
parish records, Park Gate. As
previously»mentioned, this was the
home of old Thomas Lee, who was
born in 1758 and died in 1805.
One of his sisters marrieidl Daniel
Carroll Brent, brother of Robert
Brent, first mayor of Washington
City. Perhaps the white satin
articles ordered, in one of the
letters, for Miss Polly Brﬂ;[., wp;-e
for his nlece, after all} And

- Thomas

lﬁﬁ][j@fé&e'rs Tht Bt

Park Cate itself must have been
located betwixt Dumfries and
Fredericksburg (mentioned in a
letter), and possibly very near to
Aquia, then the home of the
Brents in Virginia. ;
South of Dumfries, on a hill

near tbhe mouth of the creek,

Graham Park, the estate of

John (iraham and his family, ma-
jeslically stood. A portion of this
eslate was used when Dumfries
itself was laid out, in 1749, when
John Graham was one of the trus-
tees. As mentioned previously,
John Graham married, first,
Christian Brown, daughter of old
Dr. Gustavus Brown of” Port To-
bacco, across the Potomac in
Maryland. In this way, he be-
came a brother-in-law to the Rev.
James Scott, pastor of the
churech at Dumfries, who had
married Christian Brown's sis-
ter, Sarah.. John Graham's sec-

ond marriage was to the daugh-

ter of Catesby Cocke, clerk of the
county, who gave up his job to his
new son-in-law.

At the mouth of Quantico
Creek, on a high bluff overlook-
ing the Potomac, was View-
mont, the estate of Cuthbert
Bullitt and his wife, Helen, a
daughter of the Rev., James Scott.
One of the sons of this Cuth-
bert Bullitt later moved to Ken-
tucky and attained such fame
that a county was given his name.
Chapman (previously
named) must have been a fre-
quent visiter at Viewmont, for
many of the letters in the old col-
lection, addressed to him by the
Misses Bullitt, were written in
most ifitirhate vein!

Further back in the county of
old Prince William, John Carter
lived at Sudley, and ground. out
flour from his' home-grown iwheat,

using the mill on his placé. Down
at Sabine Hall, his dignified
father, old Landon Carter, wrote
dignified letters to the merchants
at Dumfries to whom *“‘my son
John' was indebted. This father
of John Carter was none other
than the son of that Robert who
was named by Virginians "Klng
Carter.”

There are pages and pages yet
to be written of the people and
the olden days in Dumfries, Va.,
and now that these letters-have
come to light, new and interesting
data are made available.

Reproduced with permission of the copyright owner. Further reproduction prohibited without permission.



